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GENDER DISCRIMINATION

Yahoo manipulated review system in favor  
of female employees, suit says
By Tricia Gorman, Managing Editor, Westlaw Journals

A former Yahoo editor terminated in 2014 because of low scores in the company’s 
internal review program says the ranking system is vague, difficult to understand and 
capable of being manipulated to reflect management’s personal bias against men.

REUTERS/Robert Galbraith

Anderson v. Yahoo Inc., No. 16-cv-527, complaint 
filed (N.D. Cal., San Jose Div. Feb. 1, 2016).

“[Yahoo CEO Marissa] Mayer encouraged and 
fostered the use of the QPR [review] program 
to accommodate management’s subjective 
biases and personal opinions, to the detriment 
of Yahoo’s male employees,” Gregory Anderson 
says in his complaint.

The suit, filed in the U.S. District Court for the 
Northern District of California, alleges Anderson 
was wrongfully terminated while on leave based 
on his ranking in the review.

A Yahoo representative issued a statement about 
the fairness of the company’s review process 
when reached for comment.

“[F]airness is a guiding principle of our annual 
review and reward process. Our performance 
review process was developed to allow employees 
at all levels of the company to receive meaningful, 
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EXPERT ANALYSIS

10 Takeaways for companies to avoid misclassification  
of independent contractor 
By Todd Lebowitz, Esq. 
BakerHostetler

The millennial workforce and the emerging 
gig economy have provided forward-
thinking companies the opportunity to 
build business models that rely on a 
nontraditional, independent contractor 
workforce. Contractors and companies value 
the flexibility of the contractor model, and 
companies like Uber and Lyft have embraced 
it wholeheartedly.

1930s-era wage-and-hour laws, however, 
threaten to bring these business models to a 
crashing halt. Major lawsuits in 2015 against 
Uber and Lyft allege that independent 
contractor drivers were misclassified and, 
instead, are really employees under various 
employment laws. 

Delivery companies and retailers have been 
hit with similar lawsuits, alleging that their 
independent contractor drivers and installers 
are also misclassified. Even professional 
cheerleaders and exotic dancers made 
headlines in 2015 as class-action plaintiffs.

Trending into 2016, independent contractor 
misclassification claims are being filed with  
increasing frequency, and the dollars at  
stake are game-changers. Multimillion-dollar  
settlements and judgments are common-
place. State and federal governments are 
initiating audits and investigations with 

Todd Lebowitz is a Cleveland-based partner with national law firm 
BakerHostetler. His experience includes serving as national employment 
law counsel for Fortune 50 and Fortune 1000 companies, and 
litigating employment discrimination cases in 20 states. He regularly 
advises clients on resolving complex day-to-day personnel problems 
covering the full scope of employment-related concerns, including 
background checks, hiring, disability issues, discipline, terminations, 
and reductions in force. Lebowitz has also established a practice niche 
in handling independent contractor misclassification disputes. For a 
detailed analysis of the issue, please view BakerHostetler’s white paper 
on Worker misclassification available at http://e.bakerlaw.com/s/
ac8623e03a473916d031dc370af308f8e2b1d530.

increased vigilance, having determined that 
they are missing out on millions of dollars 
in tax revenue, unemployment and workers’ 
compensation system funds, and penalties.

The U.S. Department of Labor has made 
independent contractor misclassification 
a priority enforcement area in 2016, and 
companies that are not prepared may be 
blindsided.

Companies that plan ahead can often 
improve their chances of surviving a misclass-
ification challenge. Although contractor 
misclassification claims are becoming 
increasingly difficult to defend, companies 
that are well prepared in 2016 will be better 

1. Take seriously any unemployment claim 
filed by an independent contractor. 
A finding that one contractor is an 
employee can result in a finding that 
all similarly situated workers are 
employees. Substantial assessments for 
years of unpaid premiums may follow.

2. Avoid rebranding former employees 
as contractors. Workers who once 
performed services as employees are 
unlikely to be considered legitimate 
independent contractors if performing 
the same work.

3. Avoid retaining contractors to perform 
the same work in the same location as 
employees. When individual contractors 
and employees work side by side, the 
likelihood of misclassification is high.

4. Avoid directing contractors in how 
to perform their work. In a true 
independent contractor relationship, 
the hiring entity desires results, but the 
details about how, when, and where to 
work toward those results are left to the 
contractor’s discretion.

5. Create a well-drafted contractor 
agreement, which is necessary but not 
sufficient. A well-drafted contractor 
agreement can direct attention to 
factors that support independent 
contractor status, but if the actual facts 
are inconsistent with the contract, the 
contract will be of little value.

6. For companies operating in multiple 
jurisdictions, be aware that the 
same relationships may be classified 
differently in different states. States 
with ABC tests present particular risks. 

Such tests say that in order to be considered 
an independent contractor, a worker 
may not controlled by the hiring party, or 
economically reliant on the hiring party, and 
that he either conducts all of his work outside 
of the hiring party’s worksite or performs in a 
field that is not part of the hiring party’s core 
business. ABC tests are particularly hard to 

Trending into 2016, independent contractor  
misclassification claims are being filed with increasing 

frequency, and the dollars at stake are game-changers.

positioned to defend — or prevent — class-
action lawsuits and government actions 
alleging that independent contractors are 
employees in disguise.

Following are 10 takeaways for companies 
that are using independent contractors.

TIPS FOR MANAGING EXPOSURE
Despite the complicated landscape, there 
are steps that companies can take to limit 
their risks of a misclassification finding. Here 
are 10 tips for managing exposure to worker 
misclassification claims:
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satisfy because all three components must 
be met; otherwise, the worker is deemed an 
employee.

7. Be proactive in evaluating current use 
of independent contractors. Steps can 
usually be taken to shift factors in the 
balancing tests toward independent 
contractor status.

8. Create an internal process that ensures 
review and approval by a point person 
before any manager can retain an 
independent contractor.

9. Consider using staffing agencies 
and well-established independent 
businesses that have many employees 
rather than retaining individuals. Be 
aware that workers supplied by a 
vendor will usually be deemed joint 
employees and that the company 
benefiting from those services may 
be liable if the primary employer fails 
to properly pay taxes, withhold taxes, 

provide unemployment coverage, etc., 
but a well-written vendor agreement 
with carefully drafted representations 
and indemnity provisions can provide a 
substantial layer of protection that does 
not exist when retaining individuals.

10. Check benefit-plan language. Plan 
eligibility can be drafted in a way that 
renders ineligible individuals who  
are paid as independent contractors, 
even if those individuals are later 
deemed to have been misclassified.

CONCLUSION

Worker misclassification can be difficult 
to diagnose, but the consequences of 
misdiagnosis can be enormous. 

Adverse verdicts and settlements can be in 
the millions of dollars, and entire business 
models can be threatened. The issue is not 
going away anytime soon. Federal and state 
governments are aggressively challenging 
independent contractor relationships that 

The U.S. Department of Labor has made independent 
contractor misclassification a priority enforcement area in 2016, 

and companies that are not prepared may be blindsided.

they view as more properly resembling 
employment. Class-action litigation is heavy 
in this area as well. 

Companies who use nonemployee workers 
should be proactive in evaluating these 
relationships to test whether they are likely 
to withstand scrutiny. Steps can usually be 
taken to reduce the risks of exposure, either 
by reclassifying contractors as employees or 
by changing the facts of the relationship to 
more accurately reflect a proper contractor 
relationship.  WJ
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EXPERT ANALYSIS

Fisher v. University of Texas looks to change 
the affirmative action landscape
By Joe Weiner, Esq., and David Goldstein, Esq. 
Littler Mendelson PC

On Dec. 9, the U.S. Supreme Court heard 
oral argument for a second time in Fisher v. 
University of Texas at Austin, No. 14-981, a 
case that could have far-reaching effects on 
the use of race in college admissions.  

Based on the high court’s 2013 decision in the 
same case — and the justices’ questioning of 
the parties’ attorneys this time around — it 
appears that the court may be poised to 
strike down the university’s use of race as a 
“plus” factor in college admission decisions. 

The question for employers is whether the 
court’s decision will be broad enough to 
affect workplace diversity and affirmative 
action programs.  

When the court issues its opinion (likely in 
June, toward the end of its term), employers 
will want to read the decision carefully to 
determine its potential application beyond 
higher education.

CASE BACKGROUND

The University of Texas at Austin is the flagship 
public university in Texas. UT describes its 
central mission as educating the future 
leaders of Texas, a state with an increasingly 
diverse population. Unfortunately, however, 
the university has struggled to reflect the 
state’s diversity in its student body — even 

Following the Supreme Court’s decision 
in Grutter v. Bollinger,2 which approved the 
limited use of race in college admissions, 
UT again revised its admission process. This 
time, it explicitly incorporated the Supreme 
Court’s guidance as to how race may be 
considered in the admissions process.  

In particular, UT maintained the Top 10% 
Plan for automatic admissions and added  
a second level of review for all other 
applicants. For applicants who were not 
in the top 10 percent of their high school 
class, UT created academic index/personal 
achievement indices.  

Using this holistic process, the university 
considered each applicant’s standardized 
test scores and grade point average as well 
as application essay scores and multiple 
other factors, just one of which was the 
applicant’s race.  

Abigail Fisher is a white female who was 
denied admission to UT for the entering 
class of 2008. On April 7, 2008, Fisher filed 
suit in the U.S. District Court for the Western  
District of Texas challenging the admissions 
process as a violation of the Equal Protection 
Clause of the 14th Amendment and various 
federal statutes.  

though it has pursued various strategies to 
admit more minority students. 

In 1996 the 5th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals 
invalidated the methodology that the 
university was then using in considering 
race as a factor in admissions.1 Within the 
constraints imposed by the 5th Circuit’s 
decision, the university continued to explore 
alternative means of increasing campus 
diversity, but without success. In fact, the 
number of minorities continued to decline 
substantially. 

Joe Weiner (L) is an attorney in the Minneapolis office of Littler Mendelson PC and is counsel of 
record on the amicus brief submitted by the American Association of Access, Equity & Diversity, the 
National Organization of Women Foundation and seven other civil rights organizations in support 
of the University of Texas at Austin. He can be reached at jweiner@littler.com. David Goldstein (R) 
is an attorney in the firm’s Minneapolis office, where he co-chairs the Office of Federal Contract 
Compliance Programs practice group and government contractors industry group. He can be reached 
at dgoldstein@littler.com.

Abigail Fisher, shown here outside the U.S. Supreme Court Dec. 9,  
filed suit challenging the admissions process of the University of 
Texas at Austin.

REUTERS/Kevin Lamarque

The question for employers is whether the  
court’s decision will be broad enough to affect workplace 

diversity and affirmative action programs.  

In response, the Texas Legislature passed the 
Top 10% Law, which guaranteed admission 
to any Texas student who graduated in 
the top 10 percent of his high school class.  
The law leveraged existing racial segregation 
in Texas high schools to increase the number 
of minority students admitted to the 
university. 

Even so, UT found that relying on just one 
criterion did not result in sufficient diversity 
to achieve its goal of reflecting the state’s 
demographics.  
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After discovery, the District Court granted 
summary judgment in favor of UT, finding 
the UT process satisfied the strict scrutiny 
requirements of Grutter. Fisher v. Univ. of Tex. 
at Austin et al., 645 F. Supp. 2d 587 (W.D. 
Tex. 2011). Fisher appealed to the 5th Circuit, 
which also found UT’s process constitutional.  

In reaching its conclusion, the appeals court 
gave deference to UT’s belief that diversity 
served a compelling interest in filling out its 
student body, and it found that UT’s holistic 
approach was narrowly tailored to serve that 
interest. Fisher v. Univ. of Tex. at Austin et al., 
631 F.3d 213 (5th Cir. 2011).

Fisher appealed to the Supreme Court, which 
issued an opinion in 2013. Fisher v. Univ. of 
Tex. at Austin et al., 133 S. Ct. 2411 (2013).

Rather than reaching a sweeping conclusion 
on the use of race in college admissions, the 
court remanded the case to the 5th Circuit 
with an instruction to apply a higher standard 
of review to the university’s program. 

From an employment law perspective, the 
most notable part of the decision may have 
been the court’s focus on whether UT had 
considered race-neutral alternatives.  

On remand, the 5th Circuit considered 
Fisher’s claim in light of the Supreme 
Court’s guidance and again found that the 
UT program passed constitutional muster.  
Fisher v. Univ. of Tex. at Austin et al., 758 F.3d 
633 (5th Cir. 2014).

Fisher then again asked the Supreme Court 
to intervene, and the court agreed. Over 80 
amicus briefs were submitted by various 
parties, including a brief in support of the 
university filed on behalf of over 40 Fortune 
100 companies. The case will be decided by 
just eight of the nine justices because Justice 
Elena Kagan has recused herself, presumably 
because she previously worked on the case 
while serving as U.S. solicitor general. 

To reverse the 5th Circuit, five justices will 
have to agree. In the event of a tie, the 
appellate opinion will be affirmed but no 
Supreme Court precedent will be created.

Based on their prior decisions and the tenor 
of the questioning at oral argument, there 

appear to be at least four votes — Chief 
Justice John Roberts and Justices Clarence 
Thomas, Antonin Scalia and Samuel Alito — 
to invalidate the UT program.  (Editor’s note: 
The authors’ analysis of the case was written 
before Justice Scalia’s Feb. 13 death).

Justices Ruth Bader Ginsburg, Sonya 
Sotomayor and Stephen Breyer appear 
likely to uphold the program. Therefore, as 
is so often the case, it appears that Justice 
Anthony Kennedy will be the deciding vote. 
As he has expressed doubts about race-
based affirmative action in the past, it seems 
quite possible that UT could lose.  

What cannot be predicted, however, is 
whether the decision will be a narrow one that 
applies only to the UT program, a broader 
decision that applies to all educational 
institutions, or a very broad decision that 
clearly affects employers.  

POTENTIAL OUTCOMES

It is possible that the court’s forthcoming 
decision, which involves admissions in 
higher education, will have little impact on 
employers. On the other hand, a very broadly 
written rejection of all race-conscious 
decision-making could result in a range 
of possible outcomes and have dramatic 
immediate consequences.

One outcome would be for the court to find 
the UT plan constitutional under Grutter. 

not think the jurisdictional issues are a barrier 
to deciding the case on the merits.  

Nevertheless, a dismissal on jurisdictional 
grounds might allow the court to avoid 
this politically charged issue at a time 
when it is also dealing with other politically 
controversial topics.   

Upon reflection, a majority of the justices 
might welcome an opportunity to put off 
a decision on this topic. In addition, some 
of the justices may have qualms about 
deciding an issue of this magnitude without 
the participation of one of their colleagues 
(because of Justice Kagan’s recusal) and 
for that reason may take advantage of 
the opportunity to dismiss. If the case is 
dismissed on procedural grounds, it will not 
impact educational institutions or employers.

A third possible outcome is for the court to 
remand the case to the District Court for 
trial. The case was decided at the summary 
judgment stage, and the court may decide 
that further developing the record to clarify 
the factual findings, including the university’s 
rationale for using this process and its 
attempt to narrowly tailor it to its educational 
mission, is warranted.  

At a minimum, this would delay an ultimate 
decision by the high court for years as it 
would require the case to be tried, again 
appealed to the 5th Circuit and sent to the 
Supreme Court for review.  

Moreover, the justices’ questioning at the 
most recent oral argument appears to 
establish that there would be little to gain 
from a trial because the relevant facts are not 
in dispute. Accordingly, this outcome seems 
unlikely.  

A fourth potential outcome is for the court 
to strike down the university’s program as 
not meeting strict scrutiny, but to do so on 
narrow grounds. The UT program is unique 
in its two-pronged approach to admissions. 
The court could issue a decision that strikes 
down the university’s program but has little 
applicability to other admission programs or 
affirmative action programs in general.  

The Top 10% Law unquestionably increased 
minority enrollment at UT, and the court 
could find there is no need for a two-pronged 
approach given that fact. The irony of such 
an approach is that it works only because 
of the extent to which Texas schools are 
segregated. Its continued efficacy depends 

Based on the Supreme Court’s prior decisions and  
the tenor of the questioning at oral argument, there appear  

to be at least four votes to invalidate the UT program.

This result would not impact employers, as it 
would simply reaffirm the state of the law as 
it has been since 2003.  

A second possible outcome could have the 
case dismissed as either moot or because 
Fisher lacks standing to bring her claim. 
There are real questions as to whether Fisher 
is the proper plaintiff to bring this claim, 
including that because her academic scores 
were low, she would not have been admitted 
even if UT had not considered race as one 
of its admission factors. These issues were 
raised in the briefing both times the case 
reached the court. The court has granted 
certiorari twice in spite of these jurisdictional 
issues, which would seem to indicate it does 
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on the continued segregation of Texas school 
children.  

To find this approach constitutional seems 
deeply cynical, yet it would at least allow 
other educational institutions to continue 
to consider race as part of a “holistic” 
admissions process.

The final potential outcome is for the court to 
strike down UT’s program as unconstitutional, 
in a way that calls into question the legality 
of affirmative action programs not only in 
education but also in the workplace.  

Applying strict scrutiny to race-based 
affirmative action programs has been 
criticized as “strict in theory, but fatal in fact.”3 
Several justices, including Justice Kennedy, 
have never found a race-based program that 
meets this standard.  

Thus, this case could effectively end 
affirmative action as a constitutionally 
permissible means of addressing race-based 
inequities in higher education institutions 
and the workplace.

Such a broad ruling would have varying 
effects on public employers, government 
contractors and non-contractor private 
employers.

PUBLIC EMPLOYERS

Public employers — whether federal, state, or 
local — are subject to constitutional concepts 
of equal protection. Therefore, to the extent 
the court’s decision finds affirmative action to 
be constitutionally barred, it will likely apply 
directly and fully to all public employers.  

PRIVATE EMPLOYERS

Many private employers have voluntary 
diversity programs, including outreach 
efforts to underrepresented minorities, 
mentoring and targeted training programs 
for underrepresented groups, and flexible 
hiring goals for managers or supervisors. 
Because the Equal Protection Clause of the 
14th Amendment does not apply to private 
employers, the court’s decision is likely have 
less of an immediate impact on employers 
that pursue these programs.  

However, while the constitutional prohibitions 
against the use of race-based classifications 
are not applicable to these employers, Title 
VII of the Civil Rights Act does apply.  

Many diversity programs are designed 
to completely avoid the use of race in 
decision-making and do not involve any 
use of preferences. Such programs should 
survive the court’s ruling regardless of the 
breadth of the decision. However, some 
diversity programs or initiatives may be more 
ambiguous.  

A very broadly written rejection of all race-conscious  
decision-making could result in a range of possible outcomes 

and have dramatic immediate consequences.

For example, federal contractors must 
implement such programs pursuant to 
Executive Order 11246, which is enforced 
by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs.

To various degrees, government affirmative 
action regulations require covered federal 
government contractors and subcontractors 
to take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants and employees are treated 
without regard to their race, color, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
national origin. 

OFCCP’s regulations, for example, 
require, among other things, that covered 
government contractors implement a written 
affirmative action plan including analyses 
intended to identify any “underutilization” 
of qualified minorities and women in the 
workforce and, where such underutilization is 
detected, establish placement goals.

While OFCCP has long been very careful to 
make it clear that the goals it requires are not 
“quotas” and that race-based preferences are 
barred, some state and local governments 
are more aggressive in their demands.  

A broad decision in the Fisher case could cast 
doubt on the constitutionality of government 
programs requiring affirmative action. It 
could also deprive private employers of a 
defense to reverse discrimination claims 
based on the argument that the employer 
was preferring minorities only to comply 
with federal, state or local laws applicable to 
contractors. 

CONCLUSION

No matter how the Supreme Court decides 
Fisher the second time around, issues of race 
and equity will continue to challenge the 
courts, society and employers for years to 
come. With the court considering whether 
to upend years of affirmative action law, 
employers should follow the decision closely 
and be prepared to take action as necessary.  
WJ

NOTES
1 Hopwood v. Texas, 78 F.3d 932 (5th Cir. 1996)

2 539 U.S. 306 (2003).

3 See Adarand Constructors Inc. v. Pena, 115 S. 
Ct. 2097, 243-44 n.1 (1995) (Stevens, J., 
dissenting).

4 United Steel Workers of Am. v. Weber, 99 S. Ct. 
2721 (1979).

It is not clear how a broad decision in the 
case might apply, for example, to programs 
that provide special mentoring opportunities 
to minorities or require that applicant  
pools include some minimum number of 
minority candidates. Nor is it clear whether 
a Supreme Court ruling that bars the 
consideration of minority status by private 
employers would likewise bar consideration 
of sex.  

Courts have historically been more willing 
to tolerate affirmative action on behalf of 
women as compared with affirmative action 
on behalf of minorities.

As for voluntary affirmative action plans 
that explicitly include racial preferences, 
the Supreme Court has found no Title VII 
violation where the preferences are intended 
to eliminate conspicuous racial imbalances 
in traditionally segregated job categories, 
the rights of nonminority employees are 
“not unnecessarily trammeled” (i.e. the plan 
neither requires the replacement of these 
employees with minority employees nor 
creates an absolute bar to advancement), 
and the preferences are temporally limited.4 

If the court issues a broad opinion in the case, 
it could be interpreted as opening the door to 
reconsideration of this standard. It could also 
embolden groups or individuals to challenge 
such voluntary preferences as discriminatory.

GOVERNMENT CONTRACTORS

Entities doing business with federal, state 
or local governments are often required to 
implement affirmative action programs. 
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JOINT EMPLOYER

Judge OKs mortuary drivers’ wage claims  
against employer’s customers
By Tricia Gorman, Managing Editor, Westlaw Journals

Drivers for Serenity Transportation Inc. can proceed with claims that two of the  
mortuary transport services provider’s customers — a funeral services company  
and a California county — are liable as joint employers for the drivers’ unpaid  
wages, a San Francisco federal judge has ruled.

The plaintiffs’ fourth amended complaint shows that the 
drivers’ duties were within SCI’s usual course of business and 

that the drivers spent “not an insignificant” period of time of up 
to 30 minutes on the defendants’ premises, the judge said.

Johnson et al. v. Serenity Transportation 
Inc. et al., No. 15-cv-2004, 2016 WL 
270952 (N.D. Cal. Jan. 22, 2016).

The drivers’ fourth amended complaint 
alleges “sufficient facts to plausibly infer” 
joint employer status for the “customer 
defendants,” U.S. Magistrate Judge  
Jacqueline Scott Corley of the Northern 
District of California said in a Jan. 22 order.

Drivers Curtis Johnson and Anthony Aranda 
sued Serenity Transportation and its owner, 
David Friedel, alleging it violated state  
and federal wage laws by misclassifying 
drivers as independent contractors and 
failing to pay proper minimum wages and 
overtime.

The suit also names Service Corporation 
International and Santa Clara County as 
defendants, claiming they are the drivers’ joint 
employers since Serenity is under contract 
to provide them with drivers to transport 
human remains to various locations.

Serenity drivers are on call 24 hours a day 
during their shifts and must be available via 
company-supplied radios, according to the 
order. They receive an average of seven calls 
per day, sometimes get only brief periods of 
sleep and are unable to attend to personal 
activities while on call, the order said.

The proposed class action seeks damages on 
behalf of the more than 40 drivers who have 
worked for Serenity in California in the last 
four years.

In November Judge Corley dismissed the 
plaintiffs’ claims against SCI and the county 
but allowed them to file a fourth amended 
complaint. Johnson v. Serenity Transp., 
No. 15-cv-2004, 2015 WL 6664834 (N.D. 
Cal. Nov. 2, 2015).

SCI and Santa Clara County sought dismissal 
of the amended suit, arguing they are not 
liable as joint employers.

The judge denied the motion, saying the 
plaintiffs had provided additional details 
in their latest complaint to show that SCI 
and the county could be considered joint 
employers.

Judge Corley first approved the suit’s  
claims under Section 2810.3 of the California 

JOINT EMPLOYER TEST

In addressing the suit’s joint employer 
claims, the judge said the plaintiffs’ more 
detailed allegations in their fourth amended 
complaint fulfilled three of the four factors a 
court can use to determine if an employer-
employee relationship exists, thus making 
a company liable for claims filed under the  
Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C.A. § 201.

In Bonnette et al. v. California Health & 
Welfare Agency et al., 704 F.2d 1465 (9th Cir. 
1983), the 9th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals 
established the four-part test for determining 
if a company is an employer. The four factors 
are:

•	 Power	to	hire	or	fire	employees.

•	 Control	over	an	employee’s	schedule	or	
work conditions.

•	 Ability	 to	 determine	 rate	 or	method	 of	
payment.

•	 Maintenance	of	employee	records.

The complaint established each of the 
factors except for whether SCI and Santa 
Clara County could determine the plaintiffs’ 
payment, Judge Corley said, noting that the 
complaint’s allegations on this point were 
conclusory and offered no new facts.

The plaintiffs fulfilled the first Bonnette factor 
by showing that SCI, as one of Serenity’s 
largest customers, wielded some influence 
over staffing decisions, having been able 
to remove a driver from its work rotation, 
and that the county allegedly influenced 
Serenity’s decision to fire a driver, the order 
said.

As to the second Bonnette factor, both SCI 
and the county require drivers to follow 
detailed procedures and policies and 
undergo ongoing training, and both mandate 
driver response times, the judge said.

Labor Code, Cal. Lab. Code § 2810.3, which 
does not require proof of joint employer 
status to hold the client of direct employer 
liable for wages. 

Rather, Section 2810.3 provides that a “client 
employer” receives workers from a contractor 
to perform tasks within its “usual course  
of business” and shares the responsibility 
and liability with a contractor for paying 
workers’ wages, according to the order.

The plaintiffs’ fourth amended complaint 
shows that the drivers’ duties were within 
SCI’s usual course of business and that the 
drivers spent “not an insignificant” period  
of time of up to 30 minutes on the  
defendants’ premises, Judge Corley said, 
citing the state law.
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The plaintiffs also provide additional 
information related to the final Bonnette 
factor, showing that both SCI and the county 
keep records of which drivers have worked for 
them and how much time they have spent on 
runs, the order said.

The amended complaint also adequately 
alleges that SCI can be considered a joint 
employer under state law, Judge Corley said.

The definition of “to employ” in the California 
wage order that governs the transportation 
industry includes control over wages, hours 
and conditions. SCI has some control over 
drivers’ working conditions, the judge said.

“Plaintiffs sufficiently allege that the drivers’ 
work — including transportation and 
removal of human remains — is not a distinct 
occupation or business from the SCI entities, 
but rather is integral to their work,” Judge 
Corley wrote.

SCI’s policies dictating a driver’s procedures, 
training and response times are “sufficient to 
serve as a plausible basis for a common law 
employer-employee relationship between 
the SCI entities and drivers for the purposes 
of the Labor Code,” she said.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Order: 2016 WL 270952

See Document Section A (P. 27) for the order.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Independent contractor can sue under Rehabilitation Act,  
5th Circuit says
(Reuters) – Independent contractors can sue under a law prohibiting employment discrimination against disabled 
people in federally assisted programs or activities, a federal appeals court ruled Feb. 1.

Flynn v. Distinctive Home Care Inc. dba 
Distinctive Healthcare Staffing Inc.,  
No. 15–50314, 2016 WL 386466 (5th Cir. 
Feb. 1, 2016).

In a case of first impression for the 5th U.S. 
Circuit Court of Appeals, a unanimous three-
judge panel revived a job bias lawsuit filed 
by an autistic doctor who contracted with a 
medical staffing firm to work at Lackland Air 
Force Base in San Antonio, Texas.

The panel said Rochelle Flynn, a pediatrician 
who provided clinical services at the Air Force 
base, could bring Rehabilitation Act claims 
against New York City-based Distinctive 
Home Care Inc.

The Rehabilitation Act was passed in 1973  
to prevent disability discrimination by 
federally funded or run programs, federal 
contractors and federal employers. To 
address potential discrepancies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, which was 
passed in 1990, Congress amended the 
Rehabilitation Act in 1992 by incorporating 
portions of the ADA.

But the 5th Circuit, agreeing with rulings 
from the 9th and 10th circuits, found that the 
Rehabilitation Act did not incorporate the 
ADA’s bar against independent contractors 
filing disability discrimination claims. The 
6th and the 8th circuits have reached the 
opposite conclusion.

The issue stems from Flynn’s October 2013 
lawsuit against Distinctive filed in the U.S. 
District Court for the Western District of 
Texas. She also sued Pennsylvania-based 
Spectrum Healthcare Inc., which had a deal 
with Distinctive to communicate with Flynn 
and other medical contractors on the base.

Spectrum informed Flynn in May 2013 that 
the clinic was concerned about her failure 
to get to work and fill out patients’ charts 
on time. Flynn responded that she had been 
diagnosed with autism the prior day. Over 
the next month, Flynn proposed several 
inexpensive accommodations to improve her 
social interactions and efficiency.

Spectrum then told Flynn that the Air 
Force would not grant her request for 
accommodations. And, in June 2013, 
Distinctive and Spectrum said they could not 
keep her as an independent contractor.

Flynn’s lawsuit alleged the two companies 
violated the Rehabilitation Act by 
discriminating against her and subjecting 
her to a hostile work environment based on 
her disability and denying her a reasonable 
accommodation.

U.S. District Judge Robert Pitman in 
San Antonio dismissed the case in 2015,  
Flynn v. Distinctive Home Care, No. 13-936, 
2015 WL 1004404 (W.D. Tex., San Antonio 
Div. Mar. 5, 2015), relying on the 5th Circuit’s 
unpublished per curiam decision in a 2004 

case saying the Rehabilitation Act requires 
an employer-employee relationship to 
support a lawsuit. Luna v. Roche, 89 F. App’x 
878 (5th Cir. 2004)

Flynn appealed a month later. She settled 
with Spectrum prior to oral arguments, 
according to her lawyer Chris Pittard, who 
declined to give details on that deal.

In its Feb. 1 decision, the 5th Circuit panel 
overturned the lower court, holding that the 
ADA’s employee requirement conflicts with 
the plain language of the Rehabilitation Act, 
so it did not incorporate that limitation.

“Consequently, the fact that a plaintiff is an 
independent contractor of the defendant is 
not fatal to the plaintiff’s Rehabilitation Act 
claim,” Circuit Judge W. Eugene Davis wrote 
for the panel, which also included Circuit 
Judge James Dennis and Senior Circuit Judge 
Rhesa Barksdale.

Distinctive and its lawyer, Paul Mengel of 
PilieroMazza, did not immediately respond 
to requests for comment.  WJ

(Reporting by Robert Iafolla)

Attorneys:
Plaintiff-appellant: Robert Chris Pittard, Forte & 
Pittard, San Antonio, TX

Defendant-appellee: Michael David McQueen, 
Kemp Smith LLP, El Paso, TX; Paul W. Mengel III 
and Nichole De Vries Atallah, PilieroMazza PLLC, 
Washington, DC

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 386466
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EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE

Investor can probe $60 million end of short-lived Yahoo No. 2
Yahoo Inc. must supply a dissident shareholder with internal records detailing the hiring of CEO Marissa Mayer’s 
second-in-command and his termination 14 months later with nearly a $60 million severance package, a Delaware 
judge has ruled.

although not as extreme as the completely 
compliant Disney board, “appears to have 
been tangential and episodic and they 
seem to have accepted Mayer’s statements 
uncritically.”   

MINDLESS SWALLOWING?

“A board cannot mindlessly swallow 
information, particularly in the area of 
executive compensation,” the vice chancellor 
said.

Professor Lawrence A. Hamermesh, who 
heads corporate law at Widener University 
School of Law in Wilmington, Delaware,  
said in an email that, like in the Disney case, 
there are pleading-stage questions about  
the conduct of the Yahoo CEO and the 
directors that justify a probe.   

“As for the standard to investigate alleged 
misconduct, I think the opinion gets it right 
as a formal matter,” Hamermesh said.  

He noted that the standard for books-
and-records actions is that a “stockholder 
need only show, by a preponderance of the 
evidence, a credible basis from which the 
Court of Chancery can infer there is possible 
mismanagement that would warrant further 
investigation.”

Amalgamated Bank v. Yahoo Inc., No. 10774, 
2016 WL 402540 (Del. Ch. Feb. 2, 2016).

Vice Chancellor J. Travis Laster’s Feb. 2 
first-impression ruling allows Amalgamated 
Bank to pursue its books-and-records 
investigation into whether Mayer breached 
her duty, wasted money and kept the board 
in the dark about her hiring of Henrique de 
Castro as chief operations officer in 2012. 

Although the judge gave the plaintiff broad 
access to investigate how Mayer and the 
board handled both de Castro’s hiring and 
firing, he imposed a novel condition on 
any acquired information: All of it — rather 
than “cherry-picked” documents — must 
be included in any subsequent derivative 
litigation.

ECHOES OF DISNEY

In a case that echoes the litigation over Walt 
Disney Co. CEO Michael Eisner’s ill-fated 
choice of Michael Ovitz as his No. 2, Vice 
Chancellor Laster said there is “a credible 
basis,” at least at the pleading stage. “to 
suspect that an ill-informed board rubber-
stamped Mayer’s unilateral selection

In the decade-old Disney case, then-
Chancellor William B. Chandler found 
“imperial” CEO Eisner and his handpicked 
directors botched the hiring and firing of 
Ovitz but did not breach their fiduciary duty 
to shareholders by sending him away with 
$140 million after one year. In re Walt Disney 
Co. Derivative Litig., 907 A.2d 693 (Del. Ch. 
2005).

The Disney decision came after eight years  
of litigation and a six-month high-profile 
trial, but the case  got to that point only 
because the complaint sufficiently alleged 
the directors completely abandoned their 
duty to oversee the company and allowed 
Eisner to call all the shots — including Ovitz’s 
hiring.

Vice Chancellor Laster frequently referred 
to the Disney case in his opinion, noting 
that the Yahoo directors’ involvement here, 

“As he [Vice Chancellor Laster] points out, 
this is a lower standard (easier to satisfy)  
than ultimately proving misconduct,” 
Hamermesh said.

Another reason for allowing the investigation 
to go forward, the vice chancellor noted, is 
that although Yahoo’s bylaws may shield 
directors from money judgments for lower-
level violations of their fiduciary duties, that 
protection does not apply to officers, such as 
Mayer, or suits that do not seek money.

‘A CREDIBLE BASIS’

“There is a credible basis to suspect that  
Mayer failed to provide material information 
to the [director] committee during the 
early stages of the hiring process when 
she cryptically withheld de Castro’s name, 
position and qualifications while seeking 
the committee’s blessing for a large 
compensation package,” Vice Chancellor 
Laster said.

He also noted that when the directors 
considered the terms of de Castro’s 
termination, they did not question Mayer’s 
decision to fire him “without cause,” which, 
under his employment contract, meant he 
was entitled to between $60 million and 
$109 million in severance.

The judge found the suit presented reasons 
to believe that waste had occurred, including 
that “de Castro could have been fired for 
cause, thereby avoiding the payment of any 
severance.”  WJ

Attorneys: 
Plaintiff: Christine S. Azar and Ryan T. Keating, 
Labaton Sucharow, Wilmington, DE; Thomas A. 
Dobbs, James W. Johnson, Labaton Sucharow, 
New York, NY

Defendants: Kathleen S. McCormick and 
Richard J. Thomas, Young Conaway Stargatt & 
Taylor, Wilmington, DE; Mark R.S. Foster and  
Su-Han Wan, Morrison & Foerster, San 
Francisco, CA

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 402540

 REUTERS/Elijah NouvelageYahoo CEO Marissa Mayer
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WHISTLEBLOWER

Energy company retaliated against whistleblower, suit says
By Gregory Gethard, Senior Content Writer, Westlaw Daily Briefing

A former executive of Energy Recovery Inc. says he was fired in retaliation for his refusal to mislead board members 
about the firm’s financial performance and provide false information to the public, according to a federal lawsuit.

When the plaintiff revealed he intended to tell the  
board of directors the truth about the company’s  

prospects, he says former Chief Financial Officer Joel Gay 
forced him to give scripted presentations to the  

board overstating ERI’s likely sales performance.

Barnes v. Energy Recovery Inc. et al.,  
No. 16-cv-477, complaint filed (N.D. Cal. 
Jan. 27, 2016).

David Barnes says in a complaint filed in 
the U.S. District Court for the Northern 
District of California that ERI violated labor 
and securities laws when it hired him as the 
company’s chief sales officer under false 
pretenses and then fired him when he tried 
to reveal the truth.

San Leandro, California-based ERI is a 
publicly traded company that develops 
products to transform industrial fluid flows 
and pressure cycles into reusable energy, 
according to the complaint.

The plaintiff says ERI’s former CEO Thomas 
Rooney and former Chief Financial Officer 
Joel Gay misrepresented the level of success 
the company had achieved as a qualified 
vendor for several oil and gas companies 
when interviewing him for the position in 
2014.

Barnes alleges the officers told him that 
ERI’s IsoBoost and IsoGen products were 

“mature” and being accepted by customers; 
that IsoBoost was already in use in a 
Texas facility; and that ERI had more than  
$100 million in its sales pipeline and  
expected to close one order per month, 
among other representations.

However, Barnes says after he joined the 
company in October 2014 he discovered 
it was not a qualified vendor and all the 
representations were untrue.

ERI also falsely promised to pay Barnes’ 
relocation costs, which totaled more than 
$50,000 when he moved from Houston to 
California, he alleges.

In addition, Barnes says Rooney and Gay 
conveyed false information “to the market” 
about the company’s sales prospects.

SCRIPTED PRESENTATIONS

Barnes says he complained to the head 
of ERI’s human resources department 
about the false promises that were made 
to lure him from his prior job and to the 
head of the marketing department about  
the misrepresentations being made to the 
public.

When he revealed he intended to tell the 
board of directors the truth about the 
company’s prospects, Barnes says Gay 
forced him to give scripted presentations 
to the board overstating ERI’s likely sales 
performance.

Barnes says he met with two board members 
in early 2015 and candidly told them he 
doubted the company would ship more than 
one order that year.

The board members allegedly reported his 
comments to Gay.

Barnes says he was fired in June, although 
the company falsely stated in a Securities 
and Exchange Commission filing that he 
resigned.

ERI allegedly violated the antifraud 
provisions of the Securities Exchange Act, 
15 U.S.C.A. §  78j(b), and the whistleblower 
protection provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act, 18 U.S.C.A. § 1514A.

Barnes says ERI also violated California 
Labor Code § 970, which prohibits companies 
from influencing an employee to move by 
misrepresenting the type of employment, 
and other state laws.

He seeks injunctive relief, damages, attorney 
fees and costs.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 349418
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RETALIATION

Software company exec must arbitrate retaliation claims
A former software company executive who says he was fired for investigating fraudulent pricing practices at the firm 
must arbitrate his retaliation and wrongful-termination claims, a California federal judge has ruled.  

Smith v. VMware Inc., No. 15-cv-3750,  
2016 WL 54120 (N.D. Cal. Jan. 5, 2016).

Dane Smith agreed to arbitrate any 
employment dispute when he joined VMware 
Inc. in August 2005, U.S. District Judge 
Thelton E. Henderson of the Northern District 
of California said.  

Although the arbitration clause’s fee 
and cost-splitting provisions presented a 
substantial economic barrier to justice, the 
judge severed these “unconscionable” terms 
and found the rest of the clause valid and 
enforceable.

He thus granted VMware’s motion to compel 
arbitration.  

According to the judge’s order, VMware 
is a large software firm specializing in 
cloud infrastructure and virtualization. The 
company holds U.S. government contracts. 

Smith worked for VMware from 2005 until 
his 2010 termination, the order said. 

For his first three years with the company, 
Smith was a sales vice president. During 
that time, he allegedly learned VMware was 

REUTERS/Yuya Shino

The plaintiff, a former VMware Inc. sales vice president at software company, says he was fired for refusing to condone the company’s 
overcharging practices. Here, VMware CEO Pat Gelsinger attends a 2014 news conference.

overcharging the government for products 
and began investigating the company’s 
pricing practices. 

Over the next two years, VMware demoted 
Smith twice and then fired him, according to 
the order.  

A few months after his termination, Smith 
sued the company in the Eastern District of 
Virginia for violations of the False Claims Act, 
31 U.S.C.A. § 3279. The complaint included 
counts on behalf of the United States and for 
retaliation and wrongful termination based 
on the FCA.  

The FCA allows private citizens to sue on 
behalf of the government in cases alleging 
federal funds fraud and share in any 
settlement or court award. It also provides 
certain protections for whistleblowers.

The FCA claims filed on the government’s 
behalf settled in June 2015, leaving Smith’s 
employment-related claims outstanding. 
Two months later, he filed an unopposed 
motion to transfer the case to California 
federal court for convenience of the parties, 
which the Virginia federal judge granted.

VALID ARBITRATION CLAUSE?

In October VMware moved to compel 
arbitration in the California federal court. 
Smith contested the motion, contending 
the arbitration clause was invalid because it 
contained standardized terms that he had to 
accept on a “take it or leave it” basis.  

Judge Henderson acknowledged the 
employment agreement was a standardized 
contract presented on a pre-printed form 
and not tailored to Smith in any way.   

But Smith alleged no specific facts showing 
he was pressured to sign the agreement 
quickly, the judge said. Additionally, VMware 
was offering him an executive position with 
a $225,000 base salary plus stock options 
— facts that showed he was not merely a 
low-level employee negotiating with a large 
company. 

Although Judge Henderson generally found 
the arbitration agreement was reasonable, 
a provision requiring VMware and Smith to 
each pay half the costs and expenses was 
not, he said. 

If Smith went to court and prevailed, he 
would be awarded attorney fees. Under the 
arbitration agreement, he would have to bear 
the expense of his attorney fees, rendering 
the fee and cost-splitting provisions 
substantively unconscionable, the judge said. 

He severed the agreement’s offending 
provisions, leaving the others in force.   WJ

Attorneys:
Plaintiff: Eric J. Buescher, Niall P. McCarthy, 
Shauna R. Madison and Justin T. Berger, 
Cotchett, Pitre & McCarthy, Burlingame, CA; 
Jeffrey F. Ryan, Redwood City, CA.; Mark P. 
Friedlander Jr., Friedlander Friedlander & 
Earman, Mclean, VA 

Defendant: Shannon B. Seekao, Jessica R. Perry 
and Lynne C. Hermle, Orrick, Herrington & 
Sutcliffe, Menlo Park, CA 

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 54120

See Document Section B (P. 42) for the opinion. 



FEBRUARY 17, 2016  n  VOLUME 30  n  ISSUE 15  |  13© 2016 Thomson Reuters

MINIMUM WAGE

Franchises appeal Seattle minimum wage  
case to U.S. Supreme Court
(Reuters) – A business group said Jan. 25 it was asking the U.S. Supreme  
Court to hear its appeal of a lower-court ruling tossing out its challenge of  
part of Seattle’s law to increase the minimum wage.

 REUTERS/Jason Redmond

The suit says the Seattle law favors independent businesses because it requires franchises to phase in the new $15 minimum wage more 
quickly. Seattle’s skyline is shown here.

International Franchise Association Inc.  
et al. v. City of Seattle et al., No. 15-958, 
cert. petition filed (U.S. Jan. 25, 2016).

The International Franchise Association, 
which brought its lawsuit against the city in 
June 2014, says the law favors independent 
businesses because it requires franchises like 
McDonald’s and Burger King to phase in the 
new $15 minimum wage more quickly. 

“Our appeal has never sought to prevent the 
City of Seattle’s wage law from going into 
effect,” association President Robert Cresanti 
said in a statement. 

“Our appeal to the Supreme Court will 
be focused solely on the discriminatory 
treatment of franchisees under Seattle’s 
wage law and the motivation to discriminate 
against interstate commerce,” he said.

from earning higher wages, it is time for 
these large businesses to begin investing in a 
higher minimum wage for their employees.” 

A federal judge last March denied the 
group’s lawsuit, saying it failed to back up 
its discrimination claims. The 9th U.S. Circuit 
Court of Appeals upheld that decision in 
September. Int’l Franchise Assoc. Inc. et al. v. 
City of Seattle et al., 803 F.3d 389 (9th Cir. 
Sept. 25, 2015).

The law, which took effect on April 1 last year, 
requires businesses in Seattle with more 
than 500 employees nationwide to raise 
their minimum wage to $15 by 2018. Smaller 
companies have until 2021.

Seattle is among a number of large U.S. 
cities to pass laws raising the minimum 
wage above $10 an hour. The franchise 
association’s lawsuit could have an impact in 
cities like Chicago and San Francisco.

The association said it expected the Supreme 
Court to say in the spring whether it would 
take the case.  WJ

(Reporting by Curtis Skinner in San Francisco; 
editing by Peter Cooney)

Related Court Document: 
Petition: 2016 WL 369503

The association’s lawsuit challenges the law’s  
treatment of franchises as subsidiaries of parent companies, 

rather than completely separate businesses.

The association’s lawsuit challenges the 
law’s treatment of franchises as subsidiaries 
of parent companies, rather than completely 
separate businesses.

Representatives for the city could not 
be immediately reached for comment. 
Commenting on the lawsuit last year, 
Seattle Mayor Ed Murray, a Democrat who 
championed the wage hike, said: “Rather 
than investing in lawyers to prevent workers 
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WAGE AND HOUR

Ex-call center worker sues Bank of America for overtime pay
Bank of America violated federal law by failing to pay employees for time worked in excess of 40 hours per week,  
according to a proposed class-action suit filed by a former call center worker in Phoenix federal court.

REUTERS/Lucas Jackson

Colon v. Bank of America NA, No. 16-cv-37, 
complaint filed (D. Ariz. Jan. 7, 2016).

The bank violated the Fair Labor Standards 
Act because it did not pay employees at its 
Tempe, Arizona, customer service facility for 
work performed before and after their shifts 
and during breaks, David Colon alleges in a 
complaint filed in the U.S. District Court for 
the District of Arizona.

The FLSA, 29 U.S.C.A. §  201, establishes 
minimum wage, overtime pay and 
recordkeeping standards affecting workers 
employed in the private sector and by federal, 
state and local governments. 

Colon also says BofA knowingly did not keep 
accurate employee time records so it could 
save on payroll costs at the workers’ expense.

The bank did not immediately respond to a 
request for comment on the suit.

Colon says he worked at the call center from 
January 2013 to August 2013, and was paid 
hourly for handling calls about banking and 
investment services.

The plaintiff obtained the job through a 
nonparty staffing agency called Aerotek, 
which issued his paychecks, the suit says.

Aerotek and BofA had an agreement to share 
the services of “telephone-based” employee, 
and both companies interviewed him for 
the job, it says. Both companies also had 
managers present on the floor where Colon 
worked, the complaint says.

BofA’s managers were aware that Colon 
and other call center employees arrived at 
their workstations, logged onto computers, 
started software programs, read company 
emails and began working before their shifts 
started, according to the suit.  

The bank would discipline employees who 
were not ready to take calls by the time their 
shifts started, the plaintiff says.

It also knew that employees finished 
customer calls, logged back onto the phone 
system, restarted computers, and set up 
software programs during their breaks and 
meal periods, Colon says.

BofA was likewise aware that he and other 
workers completed customer calls, closed 
out of software programs and logged off 
of computers after their shifts ended, the 
plaintiff alleges.

Because BofA did not take any steps to stop 
employees from performing work before 
and after their shifts and during breaks, it 
assented to the performance of these tasks, 
the plaintiff says.

Despite being aware that the employees 
were working for an additional 15 to 20 
minutes each day, the bank willfully did not 
pay them overtime wages, the suit says.

Colon also alleges the bank did not maintain 
proper employee time records and, as a 
result, “enjoyed ill-gained profits at the 
expense of its hourly employees.”

The suit says BofA violated Section 207(a) 
of the FLSA, which provides that when 
employees who are not exempt from 
overtime perform work for more than 40 
hours per week they are to be paid at the rate 
of 1 1/2 times their regular pay rates.

BofA did not take any steps to stop employees  
from performing work before and after their shifts  
and during breaks and therefore assented to the  

performance of these tasks, the plaintiff says.

The plaintiff seeks to represent a class of all 
telephone-based employees who were paid 
hourly at any of the defendant’s call centers 
at any time between Jan. 7, 2013, and the 
present and who did not receive the full 
amount of overtime pay earned. 

The suit is seeking unspecified sums for 
overtime wages as well as equal amounts 
as liquidated damages, which are permitted 
under Section 216(b) of the FLSA. Colon is 
also asking for an award of attorney fees and 
costs.  WJ

Attorneys:
Plaintiff: James X. Bormes, Chicago, IL; Thomas 
M. Ryan, Chicago, IL; Michelle R. Matheson, 
Matheson & Matheson, Scottsdale, AZ

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 105807
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WAGE AND HOUR

Supreme Court takes up FLSA exemptions  
for auto dealership workers
(Reuters) – The U.S. Supreme Court agreed Jan. 15 to consider whether  
customer service workers at auto dealerships are exempt from the overtime  
protections in federal labor law. The 9th Circuit ruling 

could affect 18,000 car 
dealerships in the U.S., 

which employ more than 
45,000 service advisers, 
Encino Motorcars said.

Encino Motorcars LLC v. Navarro et al.,  
No. 15-415, cert. granted (U.S. Jan. 15, 
2016).

The high court will review a March decision 
from the 9th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals 
finding that “service advisors” could sue a 
California Mercedes Benz dealership owned 
by Encino Motorcars for unpaid overtime  
pay under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 
Navarro v. Encino Motorcars LLC, 780 F.3d 
1267 (9th Cir. 2015). Encino Motorcars is 
represented by high-profile Supreme Court 
litigator Paul Clement of Bancroft.

The unanimous 9th Circuit panel held 
that U.S. Labor Department’s regulations, 
issued in the 1970s and updated in 2011, do 
not extend an exemption for automobile 
dealership workers to service advisers.  
The law exempts workers who mainly sell 

or service cars, while service advisers greet 
customers and recommend services but do 
not sell or work on cars.

The 9th Circuit decision created a circuit 
split with the 4th and 5th circuits, which 
previously found that service advisers are 
exempt from overtime protections because 
they are generally involved in servicing cars. 
Those decisions were handed down prior to 
the Labor Department’s 2011 changes to the 
relevant regulations.

The 9th Circuit ruling could affect 18,000 
car dealerships in the U.S., which employ 
more than 45,000 service advisers, Encino 
Motorcars said in its petition requesting 
Supreme Court review.

But the circuit split over the FLSA exemption 
at issue in the case could be of limited 
importance, the workers said in court filings. 

Service advisors may be subject to a different 
exemption even if they are not covered by 
the one for automobile dealership workers, 
said the workers, who are represented by 
University of Pennsylvania law professor 
Stephanos Bibas.

Industry commentators have claimed 
that many dealerships pay their service  
advisors a flat rate or on commission,  
which would qualify those workers for 
the FLSA exemption for commissioned 
salesmen, the workers said in their brief.

The Supreme Court will likely hear oral 
argument in April and decide the case by the 
end of June.  WJ

(Reporting by Robert Iafolla)

WESTLAW JOURNAL AUTOMOTIVE

This publication provides up-to-date information on devel-
opments in automotive product liability suits from around 
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belts, air bags and crashworthiness. Lemon laws, design 
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WELLNESS PROGRAMS

Employer can require medical exams  
for insurance coverage, judge says   
By Shari Pirone, Contributor, Westlaw Daily Briefing

An employer accused of violating the Americans with Disabilities Act by  
conditioning health insurance upon completion of a health-risk assessment  
and testing is protected by the law’s safe harbor provision, a federal district  
judge has ruled.

Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission v. Flambeau Inc., No. 14-cv-
638, 2015 WL 9593632 (W.D. Wis. Dec. 31, 
2015).

Flambeau Inc.’s wellness program partici-
pation requirements did not violate the  
ADA’s ban on employer-mandated medical 
exams because they were tied to the 
administration of the plan, U.S. District Judge 
Barbara B. Crabb of the Western District  
of Wisconsin said.

The judge granted plastic products 
manufacturer Flambeau’s motion for 
summary judgment and dismissed the suit, 
which was filed by the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission.

MANDATORY ASSESSMENT  
AND TESTING

The EEOC sued Flambeau on behalf of 
Dale Arnold, an employee at the company’s 
Baraboo, Wisconsin, manufacturing plant 
from 1990 to 2014.

Until 2012 Arnold was an annual participant 
in Flambeau’s self-funded, self-insured 
health plan administered by United Medical 
Resources.

Flambeau discontinued his insurance in 
2012 after the company began requiring 
employees to complete a wellness program 
in order to participate.

Employees were required to complete 
a health-risk assessment and biometric 
testing, the opinion said.

The assessment included questions about 
medical history, diet, mental and social 
health, and job satisfaction, the opinion 
said, and the biometric testing requirements 
included height and weight measurements, 
a blood pressure reading, and a blood test.

Arnold filed a complaint with the EEOC, 
which pursued the suit, asserting Flambeau’s 
testing requirement violated the ADA’s ban 
on employer-mandated medical exams,  
42 U.S.C.A § 2112(d)(4)(A).

SAFE HARBOR PROTECTION

In a matter of first impression in the  
7th Circuit, Judge Crabb ruled that 
Flambeau’s wellness program was protected 
under the safe harbor provision of the ADA, 
42 U.S.C.A. § 12201(c)(2).

The provision offers an exception to the 
ban on employer-required medical exams 
for activities tied to the administration of 
employer insurance plans, the judge said.

When wellness program participation is a 
“term” of the employer’s benefit plan and 
is based on underwriting risks, classifying  
risks or administering such risks, the safe 
harbor provision applies, even if the plan 
could have been designed without requiring 
testing, the judge said.

RISK ASSESSMENT

The data collected from the program was 
used to classify health risks and calculate 
Flambeau’s projected insurance costs, 
according to the judge.

It provided the basis for Flambeau’s 
premiums, the costs of preventive care and 
maintenance medications, and Flambeau’s 
purchase of stop-loss insurance to hedge 
against unexpectedly large claims.

The program helped Flambeau develop and 
administer the insurance plan, placing it 
squarely within the safe harbor, Judge Crabb 
said.

The judge also rejected the EEOC’s argument 
that Flambeau intended to use the wellness 
program as a subterfuge to discriminate 
against disabled employees.

All employees who wanted insurance had 
to complete the program, and Flambeau 
received the test results in aggregate, she 
said.

There was also no evidence the company 
used the results to make disability-based 
distinctions in employee benefits, Judge 
Crabb said, finding no violations of the ADA.  
WJ

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2015 WL 9593632
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RETIREE BENEFITS

Trial court gets third look at retiree benefits case,  
6th Circuit says
(Reuters) – A federal district judge must again consider a long-running dispute over a West Virginia chemical  
company’s move to force retirees to pay for their health care benefits or lose them, a U.S. appeals court ruled Jan. 21.

Tackett et al. v. M&G Polymers USA LLC  
et al., No. 12–3329, 2016 WL 240414 (6th 
Cir. Jan. 21, 2016).

On remand from the U.S. Supreme Court, 
a unanimous three-judge panel of the  
6th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals sent the  
case back to Judge Gregory Frost in 
Columbus, Ohio, to determine whether 
M&G Polymers could change retiree benefits 
that had been collectively bargained for by 
taking away the former employees’ lifetime 
contribution-free healthcare benefits.

Although the District Court sided with the 
retirees in 2012 after a bench trial, the panel 
said those proceedings may have been 
influenced by the contract construction 
principles from 6th Circuit case law — United 
Auto Workers v. Yard-Man, 716 F.2d 1476 
(6th Cir. 1983), and its progeny — that the 
Supreme Court overturned in 2015. M&G 
Polymers USA LLC et al. v. Tackett et al., 135 S. 
Ct. 926 (U.S. 2015).

“Because prior factual determinations as 
to the parties’ agreements were made ‘in 
the shadow of Yard-Man,’ we remand to the 
district court to make these determinations, 
in the first instance, in light of the Supreme 
Court’s holding,” Chief Circuit Judge Guy 
Cole wrote for the panel.

M&G reached an agreement for the years 
2005 to 2008 with the United Steel Workers, 
the union for its employees at its Point 

Pleasant Polyester Plant in Apple Grove, 
West Virginia. A provision in the deal limited 
the company’s financial obligation for future 
retirees’ healthcare costs by capping the 
company’s annual contributions.

But by 2007, M&G began applying that cap 
to workers who had already retired. This led 
to some retirees dropping coverage due to 
the costs, while others lost coverage when 
they could not make the payments.

Affected retirees, together with the USW, 
filed a proposed class action in the U.S. 
District Court for the Southern District of 
Ohio claiming the agreement in effect when 
they retired granted them contribution-
free healthcare benefits for life, which the 
company could not unilaterally change.

The district court initially dismissed the suit, 
finding that M&G did not breach the collective 
bargaining agreement because there  
were “side letters” on healthcare benefit 
caps from previous union deals that were 
incorporated by reference.

But the 6th Circuit overturned that dismissal 
in 2009. Tackett et al. v. M&G Polymers USA 
LLC et al., 561 F.3d 478 (6th Cir. 2009). 
Applying principles of contract construction 
from Yard-Man, it found there was enough 
evidence to show the bargaining agreement 
intended to give the retirees a right to 
lifetime contribution-free healthcare to allow 
the case to proceed.

The 6th Circuit weighed in again in 2013, 
when it affirmed the District Court’s 2012 
order reinstating the retirees’ benefits. 
Tackett et al. v. M&G Polymers USA LLC et al., 
853 F. Supp. 2d 697 (S.D. Ohio 2012); Tackett 
et al. v. M&G Polymers et al., 733 F.3d 589 
(6th Cir. Aug. 12, 2013). M&G appealed to the 
high court in 2014.

The Supreme Court unanimously overturned 
the 6th Circuit, saying that the circuit’s  
Yard-Man decision creates a misguided 
framework for analyzing collective bargaining 
agreements “by placing a thumb on the 
scale” in favor of workers’ rights to benefits.

In the Jan. 21 decision, the 6th Circuit panel, 
composed of Cole and Senior Circuit Judges 
Damon Keith and Gilbert Merritt, sent the 
case to the district court to reconsider it 
according to the “ordinary principles” of 
contract law.

USW associate general counsel Joe 
Stuligross said the district court is unlikely to 
order a new trial, but instead apply contract 
law to the facts that were already developed 
during the bench trial.

M&G’s lawyer, Allyson Ho of Morgan Lewis & 
Bockius, said in an emailed statement that 
the company was pleased with the circuit’s 
decision.  WJ

(Reporting by Robert Iafolla)

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 240414



18  |  WESTLAW JOURNAL  n  EMPLOYMENT © 2016 Thomson Reuters

AFFORDABLE CARE ACT

Judge tosses Ohio’s suit over Obamacare 
‘transitional’ insurance fees
By Michael Scott Leonard, Senior Legal Writer, Westlaw Journals

The Obama administration did not overstep constitutional limits on its power 
to tax the states by assessing “transitional” Affordable Care Act fees, meant 
to fund the law while it phased in, against Ohio agencies that sponsor health 
plans for their workers, a federal judge has decided.

insurance pool as costs rise, choosing a tax 
penalty over expensive health coverage they 
do not expect to use. There are some signs 
that is already happening, The New York 
Times reported Jan. 3.

The transitional reinsurance program is 
supposed to safeguard the health care 
market against the destabilizing effects of 
the Affordable Care Act’s chaotic, years-long 
rollout.

The program “targeted volatility and price 
increases in the individual market as insurers 
adjusted (perhaps imperfectly at first) to 
different risk pools,” according to Judge 
Marbley’s opinion.

In implementing the rule, the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services 
aimed to raise about $25 billion from 2014 
through 2016, prorated across all insurers, 
whether private or state-run. The agency 
could then deploy those funds as needed to 
stabilize insurance pools hit especially hard 
by the transition to Obamacare.

‘NO OBSTACLE’

In its suit challenging the program, Ohio 
claimed the Affordable Care Act does not 
allow HHS to assess the transitional fees 
against states or their agencies. Even if the 
law did permit those fees, the state said, the 
Constitution does not.

Applying the transitional program to the 
states would violate the 10th Amendment 
and the doctrine of intergovernmental tax 
immunity, Ohio’s complaint said, citing two 
sections of the Constitution that reflect 
“structural” federalism concerns.

But Judge Marbley rejected that reasoning, 
saying both constitutional provisions prevent 
the federal government from aiming specific 
taxes at the states, not from taxing a state 
health insurer the same way it would a 
similarly situated private company.

“The 10th Amendment permits the federal 
government to subject state employers to 
the same regulations that apply to private 
employers, even when those regulations 
affect the state treasury,” the judge wrote. 
“The intergovernmental-tax-immunity 
doctrine [likewise] poses no obstacle to 
the federal government subjecting state 
employers to a nondiscriminatory tax.”  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 51226

Ohio v. United States, No. 15-cv-321,  
016 WL 51226 (S.D. Ohio Jan. 5, 2015).

U.S. District Judge Algenon L. Marbley of 
the Southern District of Ohio tossed the case  
Jan. 5, finding that Obamacare authorized 
the federal government to apply the 
“transitional reinsurance program” to state 
agencies and that Congress did not violate 
the 10th Amendment or state sovereignty 
principles when it wrote the law that way.

“Put simply, Congress intended for all group 
health plans, including those operated by 
state or local governments, to pay into the 
transitional reinsurance program,” Judge 
Marbley wrote. “The text, structure, and 
purpose of the Affordable Care Act (and 
related statutes) confirm as much.

“Moreover, Congress and the Department of 
Health and Human Services did not violate 
the Constitution when they subjected health 
plans offered by state and local government 
employers to the same requirements as 
those offered by private-sector employers,” 
the judge said.

COVERAGE GUARANTEES

The transitional program at the heart 
of Ohio’s suit, which the state filed in 
January 2015, is supposed to help hedge 
against any uncertain or paradoxical 
effects the Affordable Care Act may have 
on the insurance market as most of its 
minimum-coverage guarantees take effect 
incrementally between 2014 and 2016.

Obamacare requires insurers to take 
nearly all comers without charging higher 
premiums for older, sicker or otherwise riskier 
customers.

The health care reform law also requires 
all insurers to cover certain “minimum 
essential” services, with an emphasis on 
preventive care, including annual checkups, 
mammograms and birth control.

In an unrelated lawsuit, Ohio has joined nearly 
20 other states in taking that contraceptive 
requirement all the way to the U.S. Supreme 
Court, which is now considering the case. 
Zubik et al. v. Burwell et al., No. 14-1418, cert. 
granted (U.S. Nov. 6, 2015).

To achieve those minimum-coverage 
standards without sending the insurance 
market into a “death spiral,” the Affordable 
Care Act includes a number of loss-spreading 
mechanisms, such as the much-litigated 
“individual mandate” requiring almost 
everyone to obtain health coverage or pay a 
tax penalty.

An insurance death spiral occurs when 
healthy people choose to go without 
coverage, leaving the insurance pool and 
raising premiums for those who remain, who 
tend to be sicker, higher-cost patients.

TRANSITIONAL STABILITY

When all Obamacare’s coverage 
requirements have taken effect, they are 
supposed to prevent a death spiral by keeping 
younger, healthier customers on board to 
subsidize a system that no longer prices out 
many of the sickest, costliest patients.

But the coverage provisions reflect a close 
calibration of different market mechanisms 
that may not do any good at all until they are 
all working together.

There is also no guarantee the individual 
mandate will work as expected, since 
younger, healthier people may leave the 
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LABOR AND PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT NEWS

VOLUNTARY QUIT IN ABSENCE OF IMMINENT DISCHARGE 
STYMIES UNEMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY

Ruling: The Pennsylvania Commonwealth Court concluded substantial 
credible evidence supported the state Unemployment Compensation 
Board of Review’s determination that a former behavioral support 
worker was not advised to resign to avoid termination during the midst 
of an investigation into allegations he harmed a student. The appellate 
court similarly affirmed the finding of the UCBR that the claimant was 
not entitled to unemployment compensation benefits because he failed 
to demonstrate that his voluntary resignation, during the pendency of a 
workplace investigation, was necessitous and compelling for purposes 
of Section 402(b) of the Unemployment Compensation Law.

What it means: Under Pennsylvania law, when an employee resigns 
to avoid an imminent discharge, the resignation is considered a 
discharge. However, a resignation that occurs without any action on 
the part of the employer constitutes a voluntary quit and renders the 
individual ineligible for compensation benefits under Section 402(b) of 
the Unemployment Compensation Law. Here, the claimant resigned 
during the pendency of an investigation into his alleged misconduct, 
but before the employer took any actual action against him. Therefore, 
the UCBR properly determined he voluntarily quit his employment 
without a compelling necessitous reason and was ineligible for 
unemployment compensation benefits.

Eible v. Unemployment Compensation Board of Review, 47 PPER 71 
(Pa. Commw. Ct. Jan. 29, 2016).

IMPACT ON MANAGERIAL PREROGATIVE OUTWEIGHS 
DUTY TO BARGAIN TEMPORARY SHIFT CHANGE

Ruling: A hearing examiner for the Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board 
determined that Catasauqua Borough did not violate Section 6(1)(a) 
and (e) of the Pennsylvania Labor Relations Act as read with Act 111, 
the state’s Police & Firefighter Collective Bargaining Law, when it 
placed an officer on administrative duty and required him to undergo a 
psychological screening after his involvement in an on-duty shooting. 
Although the police association contended the borough had a duty 
to bargain the unilateral change, the hearing examiner applied the 
balancing test in determining the borough’s actions were rationally 
related to the terms and conditions of employment, and constituted a 
legitimate exercise of the employer’s managerial prerogative.

What it means: A managerial decision is a mandatory subject of 
bargaining if the decision is rationally related to the terms and 
conditions of employment and bargaining over the issue would not 
unduly infringe on the employer’s essential managerial responsibilities. 
Here, the borough proffered a compelling justification for its actions 
where record evidence showed it made the shift change to make 
the officer more readily available in the investigation of the shooting 
incident and afforded him the opportunity to take advantage of a 
psychological examination.

Catasauqua Police Officers Assoc. v. Catasauqua Borough, 47 PPER 
72 (Pa. Labor Relations Bd., H. Exam’r Feb. 1, 2016).

UNION RESOLUTION URGING DIVESTITURE, MID-EAST 
PEACE, FALLS SHORT OF ILLEGAL BOYCOTT

Ruling: The National Labor Relations Board Division of Advice declined 
to find that a union violated Section 8(b)(4)(i)(B) of the National Labor 
Relations Act when it passed a resolution at its convention, and “urg[ed] 
the union at all levels to become engaged in the Boycott, Divestment 
and Sanctions movement for peace, justice and equality between 
Palestinians and Israelis.” Although the charging party contended 
the union’s actions essentially advocated an illegal secondary boycott 
against Israel and Israeli concerns, the division of advice concluded 
employees “would not reasonably understand the Union’s resolution 
as a signal or request to engage in a work stoppage against their own 
employer.”

What it means: Section 8(b)(4)(i)(B) of the act makes it unlawful under 
certain circumstances for a labor organization or its agent “to engage 
in, or induce or encourage employees to engage in, a strike or other 
work stoppage against their own employer.”

United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, 43 NLRB 
AMR 21 (Nat’l Labor Relations Bd. Dec. 21, 2015).

VERIZON FAILS TO ‘CONNECT’ ON RELEVANCY  
OF REQUESTED INFORMATION

Ruling: The National Labor Relations Board Division of Advice 
concluded an electrical union did not violate Section 8(b)(3) of the 
National Labor Relations Act when it refused to provide Verizon, a wire-
line communications employer, with copies of the collective bargaining 
agreements that it has with the employer’s competitors.

What it means: Although parties involved in collective bargaining 
have a general obligation to provide, upon request, information that 
is relevant for negotiating purposes, requested information about 
employees outside the bargaining unit is not presumptively relevant. 
Here, the employer failed to establish the relevance of the requested 
information because there was no evidence the union placed its other 
contracts in issue by relying upon them during bargaining.

Verizon New Jersey IBEW Local 827, 43 NLRB AMR 20 (Nat’l Labor 
Relations Bd. Dec. 11, 2015).

EMPLOYER’S ANTI-UNION STATEMENTS, ACTIONS HALT 
DECERTIFICATION PROCEEDINGS

Ruling: The California Public Employment Relations Board’s regional 
attorney granted a union’s request to stay a decertification election, 
pending resolution of an unfair-practice charge. The regional attorney 
found that the employer forcibly subjected employees to anti-union 
speech during a mandatory employee meeting. The regional attorney 
determined that misinformation and coercive statements in a letter 
from the school principal to the employees would prevent employee 
free choice in decertification proceedings.
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What it means: Under PERB Regulation 32752, the board may stay 
an election pending the resolution of an unfair-labor-practice charge 
relating to the voting unit if evidence indicates that the alleged 
unlawful conduct would so affect the election process as to prevent 
employees from exercising free choice.

Imagine Schools at Imperial Valley and Group of Employees and 
CTA/NEA, Imagine Educators Ass’n, 40 PERC 101 (Cal. Pub. Emp’t 
Relations Bd. Reg.l Attorney Oct. 7, 2015).

CITY VIOLATES MMBA THROUGH SURFACE BARGAINING 
AND BY PREMATURELY DECLARING IMPASSE

Ruling: In a proposed decision, the California Public Employment 
Relations Board’s administrative law judge ruled that the employer 
violated Meyers-Milias-Brown Act provisions through the following 
misconduct: (1) engaging in surface bargaining; (2) prematurely 
declaring impasse in those negotiations, (3) directly communicating 
with employees and (4) unilaterally implementing its last, best and 
final offer without negotiating in good faith. The ALJ decided that the 
employer also engaged in actions that interfered with employees’ rights 
to participate in the activities of an employee organization of their own 
choosing. The ALJ rejected the employer’s contention that the union 
violated MMBA provisions by issuing a strike threat and threatening to 
revoke tentative agreements.

What it means: The ALJ explained that MMBA Section 3505 requires 
public agencies and recognized employee organizations to meet and 
confer in good faith over wages, hours and other terms and conditions 
of employment. This duty is not fulfilled where a party grants only a 
perfunctory review of the other party’s proposals.

Service Employees International Union, Local 1021 v. City of 
Hayward, 40 PERC 107 (Cal. Pub. Emp’t Relations Bd. A.L.J. Dec. 23, 
2015).

HOSPITAL RECRUITMENT ANALYSTS DON’T FALL  
UNDER CONFIDENTIAL EXCLUSION FROM UNIT

Ruling: In an unpublished ruling, the Illinois Appellate Court, First 
District, affirmed the decision of the state Labor Relations Board, 
Local Panel, regarding a majority interest petition. It upheld the LRB’s 
conclusion that the petitioned-for classification of recruitment and 
selection analysts should be included in an existing bargaining unit 
of county hospital employees. The court ruled that the RSAs did not 
qualify as confidential employees under either the “labor nexus” or 
“authorized access” tests.

What it means: The appeals court noted that courts narrowly interpret 
the confidential exclusion under the Illinois Public Labor Relations 
Act Section 3(r) because confidential employees are precluded from 
exercising their statutorily guaranteed bargaining rights. As the party 
asserting the exclusion, the employer bore the burden of producing 
sufficient evidence to support its contention.

Cook County Health and Hospital System v. Illinois Labor Relations 
Board, Local Panel et al.; 32 PERI 102 (Ill. App. Ct., 1st Dist. Dec. 31, 
2015).

COURT RULES: INTEREST ARBITRATOR PROPERLY 
RELIED ON ‘SCATTERGRAM’ IN ISSUING AWARD

Ruling: The New Jersey Superior Court, Appellate Division, affirmed the 
state Public Employment Relations Commission majority’s decision 
to uphold an interest arbitration award. The arbitrator utilized the 
employer’s scattergram in issuing a conventional interest arbitration 
award involving a negotiations unit of supervisory law enforcement 
officers serving the state employer. In upholding PERC’s decision, the 
appeals court relied on the commission’s consistent holdings that the 
state employer’s savings on salary expenditures may not be considered 
when calculating a salary award under the 2 percent salary cap.

What it means: The appeals court explained that its deferential 
standard of review for interest arbitration awards did not permit it to 
substitute its judgment for PERC’s judgment by requiring the arbitrator 
to adopt the union’s methodology.

In the Matter of the State of New Jersey and New Jersey Law 
Enforcement Supervisors Ass’n, 42 NJPER 83 (N.J. Super. Ct., App. 
Div. Jan. 15, 2016).

UNION COMMITS UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE BY INSISTING 
ON PROHIBITED SUBJECTS OF BARGAINING

Ruling: The Michigan Court of Appeals affirmed the Michigan 
Employment Relations Commission’s decision regarding an unfair-
labor-practice charge. It ruled that a union violated its bargaining duty 
by insisting on the employer’s acquiescence to provisions concerning 
prohibited subjects of bargaining as a condition of agreement on a 
successor contract. Once the employer clearly indicated that it did not 
want to include any provisions pertaining to the prohibited subjects in 
the successor bargaining agreement, the court reasoned, the union 
lacked authority to continue insisting on the inclusion of the proposed 
language in the successor agreement.

What it means: Under Michigan case law, subjects to a collective 
bargaining agreement may be classified as mandatory, i.e., subjects 
that the parties are required to bargain over, permissive, i.e., subjects 
that the parties may bargain over, and illegal or prohibited, i.e., subjects 
that the parties may discuss but that are unenforceable if included in 
a contract.

Calhoun Intermediate Education Association, MEA/NEA v. Calhoun 
Intermediate School District, 29 MPER 42 (Mich. Ct. App. Jan. 7, 
2016).

LABOR AND PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT NEWS
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RECENTLY FILED COMPLAINTS FROM WESTLAW COURT WIRE*

*Westlaw Court Wire is a Thomson Reuters news service that provides notice of new complaints filed in state and federal courts nationwide, 
sometimes within minutes of the filing.

Case Name Court Docket # Filing 
Date Allegations Damages Sought

Pendleton v. Fairleigh 
Dickinson University 
2016 WL 323828

D.N.J. 16-cv-410 1/22/16

Fairleigh Dickinson University 
discriminated against employee based on 
his age and terminated him in retaliation 
for his opposition of the hostile work 
environment.

In excess of $10 million 
in compensatory, 
consequential, exemplary 
and liquidated damages; 
declaratory judgment and 
injunction

Perrero v. HCL Inc. 
2016 WL 297380 M.D. Fla. 16-cv-112 1/25/16

Class action. Walt Disney World and 
its co-defendant HCL Inc. violated 
the federal Racketeer Influenced and 
Corrupt Organizations Act by terminating 
employees in exchange for foreign skilled 
workers whose H1B working visas were 
fraudulently acquired.

Treble damages, injunctive 
relief, fees and costs

Ware v. NBC Nevada 
Merchants Inc. 
2016 WL 304646

D. Nev. 16-cv-135 1/25/16

NBC Nevada Merchants discriminated 
against employee based on her race and 
created an uncomfortable and hostile 
environment for her.

In excess of $50 million in 
punitive damages, fees and 
costs

Nightingale v. 
Newforma Inc. 
2016 WL 325540

Or. Cir. Ct. 
(Multnomah) 16cv02150 1/26/16 Newforma Inc. terminated employee 

after learning of his disabilities. $1 million, fees and costs

Hayblum v. Life Alert 
Emergency Response 
Inc. 
2016 WL 337194  

N.Y. Sup. Ct.  
(N.Y. Cty.)

0150698-
2016 1/28/16

Life Alert Emergency Response Inc. 
and its officers discriminated against 
employee based on her national origin, 
sexually harassed and terminated her 
in retaliation for opposing defendants’ 
unlawful practices.

In excess of $15 million in 
compensatory, punitive and 
other damages; back and 
front pay; expenses; interest; 
fees; and costs

Wei v. Anthem Inc. 
2016 WL 355834 E.D.N.Y. 16-cv-468 1/29/16

Anthem Inc. and its affiliates 
discriminated against and harassed 
employee based on her age and national 
origin, and terminated her in retaliation 
for complaining about the harassment 
and discrimination.

$10 million in compensatory 
and punitive damages; 
$500,000 in back and 
front pay; actual damages; 
declaratory relief; 
reinstatement; interest; fees; 
and costs

Barajas v. Uber 
Technologies Inc. 
2016 WL 403873

Cal. Super. Ct. 
(S.F. Cty.)

CGC-16-
550198 2/1/16

Class Action. Uber Technologies has 
failed to pay employees regular hourly 
and overtime wages and further 
retaliated against them for complaining.

General, punitive and 
statutory damages; 
injunction; interest; fees; and 
costs

Damigos v. Sony Corp. 
2016 WL 416537  

Cal. Super. Ct. 
(S.F. Cty.)

CGC-16-
550256 2/3/16

Sony Corp. discriminated against 
employee by failing to transfer him and 
terminating him based on age.

Compensatory and punitive 
damages, fees, and costs
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regular and actionable feedback from 
others,” the statement said. 

“We believe this process allows our team 
to develop and do their best work. Our 
performance review process also allows for 
high performers to engage in increasingly 
larger opportunities at our company, as well 
as for low performers to be transitioned out,” 
the statement said.

According to the complaint, Yahoo’s  
quarterly performance review system 
involves a ranking process in which  
managers rate employees on a scale from 
0-5. Workers are placed in five different 
categories — “greatly exceeds,” “exceeds,” 
“achieves,” “occasionally misses,” and 
“misses” — based on those scores.

Upper management requires managers to 
assign a certain percentage of employees 
into each category regardless of their 
performance, the suit says. Those higher-
level managers, who have little contact  
with workers, modify the scores in a process 
called “calibration,” without any explanation 
or oversight, the complaint adds.

Employees are never told what their ranking 
is or how it was determined, the suit alleges.

“The QPR process therefore permitted 
and encouraged discrimination based on 
gender and any other personal bias held by 
management,” the complaint says.

The suit notes that other companies with 
similar “forced” or “stack ranking” systems, 
including Ford Motor Co., Goodyear and 
Capital One, have been successfully 
challenged in class-action lawsuits.

One such suit is still pending against 
Microsoft, which abandoned the system in 
2013, the complaint says.

TERMINATED WHILE ON LEAVE

Anderson says he was chosen in May 2014 
to attend the Knight-Wallace Journalism 
Fellowship at the University of Michigan. His 
immediate supervisor approved his leave 
and congratulated him on being chosen to 
receive the honor, the complaint says.

Six months later, while still at the fellowship, 
Anderson and hundreds of other Yahoo 
employees were terminated based on QPR 
results, the suit says. 

Yahoo
CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

“The QPR process therefore permitted and encouraged 
discrimination based on gender and any other personal bias 

held by management,” the complaint says.

Anderson says that as result of the  
company’s discrimination, he lost wages  
and benefits and also suffered emotional 
distress and embarrassment from being 
terminated while at the fellowship.

He could not look for work right away 
because he and his family were stuck in 
Michigan while he completed the fellowship, 
the complaint says.

Anderson further alleges that Yahoo  
violated federal and state laws governing  
the notice employers must provide when 
there is a mass layoff.

Yahoo slashed its workforce by 31 percent 
between January 2012 and July 2015 

Anderson alleges the company terminated 
him based on his gender, in violation of 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C.A. 
§  2000e, and California’s Fair Employment 
and Housing Act, Cal. Gov. Code § 12940(a).

Anderson’s discrimination claims are based 
in part on statements allegedly made by 
company executives.

He said he heard one manager say she 
wanted to hire a woman to fill an editor-in-
chief position. The woman ultimately hired 
was less qualified than male candidates for 
the position, Anderson alleges.

According to the complaint, Yahoo’s 
former chief marketing officer, Kathy Savitt,  
publicly stated that she wanted to hire 
and promote women, and terminated and 
demoted men based on their gender.

All but two of 16 senior-level employees 
Savitt hired over an 18-month period were 
women, the suit says.

without providing the required 60 days’ 
notice under the state and federal Worker 
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, 
the suit says.

The complaint alleges that Yahoo used 
the QPR system to avoid compliance with 
the WARN Act, to allow managers to make 
discriminatory decisions and to breach the 
company’s contracts with workers.

Anderson seeks unspecified damages plus 
injunctive and declaratory relief.  WJ

Attorney:
Plaintiff: Jon R. Parsons, Palo Alto, CA

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 393573
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LYFT SETTLES CALIFORNIA DRIVERS’ CLASSIFICATION SUIT FOR $12 MILLION

Ride-share service Lyft has agreed to pay $12.25 million to settles claims it misclassified drivers 
as independent contracts and failed to meet state wage requirements. The company also will 
change its terms of service, according to a settlement agreement filed in San Francisco federal 
court Jan. 26. The pact, affecting drivers across the state, awaits court approval. The drivers filed 
a proposed class action in 2013, alleging the company failed to treat them as employees and pay 
them proper minimum wages and gratuities. In addition to the monetary payment, Lyft also will 
implement several policy changes, including agreeing to give specific reasons or notice before 
terminating drivers and paying fees related to the arbitration of drivers’ employment disputes, 
the settlement filing says.  

Cotter et al. v. Lyft Inc., No. 13-cv-4065, motion for preliminary approval of settlement filed 
(N.D. Cal. Jan. 26, 2016).

AT&T WORKER GETS $370,000 IN AGE DISCRIMINATION SUIT

A federal jury awarded a former AT&T service executive $370,000 in his age discrimination suit 
Jan. 11 after a five-day trial in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.  
John Gerundo filed suit in September 2014. AT&T terminated Gerundo in March 2013 at age 65 
after 43 years with the company. According to the suit, Gerundo’s supervisor told him his position 
was being “surplussed,” but he alleged the decision was based on his age. The suit included 
claims under federal and state discrimination laws, and the plaintiff sought damages for lost 
wages and pain and suffering.

Gerundo v. AT&T Inc. et al., No. 14-cv-5171, verdict returned (E.D. Pa. Jan. 11, 2016).

CVS EMPLOYEE CHALLENGES WELLNESS EXAM RULING

A CVS pharmacy clerk has filed a brief with the 9th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals challenging 
a court decision that she is not entitled to compensation for time and expenses incurred 
undergoing a voluntary annual health screening and wellness review related to the company’s 
health insurance plan. A California federal judge ruled Aug. 12 that Garfield Beach CVS LLC 
need not pay Roberta Watterson for time spent completing the screening and review because 
of her voluntarily participation. The plan is an optional benefit provided to CVS employees, and 
the company does not condition any terms of employment on enrollment in the plan or on 
participants’ completion of the screen or review, the judge said. In her appeals, Watterson argues 
that she has no real choice but to enroll in the company’s health insurance program.

Watterson v. Garfield Beach CVS LLC, No. 15-16623, opening brief filed (9th Cir. Feb. 8, 2016).
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